MINISTRY OF EDUCATION AND SCIENCE OF UKRAINE SUMY NATIONAL AGRARIAN UNIVERSITY

Management Department

«CONFIRMED»

Head of the Management Department

«.09» (06

(A.M. Mikhailov)

2020

CURRICULUM (SYLABUS)

International Economic Relations

Speciality: 073 "Management"

Educational program: Management (first level (bachelor) of higher education)

Faculty: Economics and Management

Curriculum of	«International	Economic	Relations»	was	worked	out	for	the	students
by specialty 07:	3 «Management»	>							

The working program is drawn up:

PhD, senior lecturer of the Management Department Mohylna L.M. (Indiana)

Working curriculum was reviewed by the Management Department Report «09» 06 2020 № 12

Head of the Management Department, Doctor of Economics, Professor

Coordinated by:

Guarantor of the educational program

Dean of Economics and Management faculty

Methodist of department of quality of education, licensing and accreditation

Registered in the electronic database: date:

[©] SNAU, 2020

[©] Mohylna L.M., 2020.

1. Curriculum description

	1. Culticulum deseri				
Indicators	Branch of knowledge, training direction, qualification level	Characteristics of course full-time extramura education studies			
Number of credits – 3	Branch of knowledge 07 "Management and Administrating" - for 4 courses of ED "Bachelor"		native		
Modules 2 Content modules 2		2020-2021	ears -		
	Speciality:	Course			
Individual scientific research task: Preparation of abstracts	073 Management	4	-		
Treparation of abstracts		Semester			
Total quantity, hours – 90		7	-		
1 otal quantity, nours > 0		Lectures			
		30	-		
		Practical classes			
Week classes for full-		14	-		
time styding:	Educational degree:	Labs			
classes – 3	Bachelor	-	-		
individual - 3		Individ 46	ual work		
			-		
		Individual tasks			
		Forms of Control: Exam			

Note.

Correlation of numbers of classes to individual work is -49/51 (44/46)

2. Aim and Tasks

- 2.1 The purpose: is acquiring students theoretical knowledge and practical skills for the development of equal economic relations between major countries and developing countries, as well as Ukraine's joining the international community in mutually beneficial ways.
- 2.2. Tasks: is to teach students the basic principles of formation of new trends and patterns of development of modern international economic relations, study and analysis of key features, features of international capital movements, issues related to international business, trade, comprehensive analysis of monetary, financial and credit financial relations in the world market.

The study of the discipline "International Economic Relations" involves the formation of students' competencies:

No	Type of program	Program competence	Code
	competencies		
	General		
1		Appreciation and respect for diversity and multiculturalism,	GK8
		ability to work in an international context.	
	Professional		
	(special)		
1		Ability to identify functional areas of the organization and the	PK 3
		relationships between them.	

2.3 Program learning outcomes

As a result of studying the discipline "International Economic Relations" the student must be able to demonstrate the following learning outcomes:

No	Program learning outcomes	Code				
1	Demonstrate knowledge of theories, methods and functions of management,					
	modern concepts of leadership.					
2.	Demonstrate skills of situation analysis and communication in various areas of the	PLO 11				
	organization.					
3.	Demonstrate the ability to act socially responsibly and socially consciously on the	PLO 15				
	basis of ethical considerations (motives), respect for diversity and interculturalism					

3. Program of Discipline

(confirmed of Scientific Council SNAU protocol # 6 from 23.12.2019.)

- Topic 1. Theoretical Foundations of International Economic Relations Subject theoretical basis for understanding international economic relations. Levels, types and forms of international economic relations. The concept of environment in international economic relations. The nature and characteristics of international economic relations at the turn of the XXI century History.
- Topic 2. Features of modern world economy Foundations and trends in world economic relations. Characteristics of modern organizational and economic structure of the world economy. Key trends and differences in the development of the world economy. Ukraine's participation in the international division of labor and international trade.
- Topic 3. International division of labor. Nature and factors of international division of labor. Major trends in the international division of labor in modern terms. Forms and direction of international specialization and cooperation of conduct. Problems of Ukraine's participation in the international division of labor.
- Topic 4. International Trade. The current state of international trade. Features dynamics and changes in territorial and commodity structure of foreign trade. Major trends in world trade today. Ukraine's participation in international trade.

Topic 5. International Monetary and Financial Relations. The world monetary system. Its composition, status and trends of further development. The concept of the balance of international payments, their features and differences of each other.

Topic 6. The international scientific and technical cooperation The role of technological exchange in the global economy. Mechanisms for technology transfer - types, differences and peculiarities. Price license. Documentation does not ensure technology transfer. Ukraine's participation in today's technology market.

Topic 7. Tourism International The essence of international tourism, its types and structure. Subjects of international tourism. Factors promoting international tourism. Its impact on the economy of the state. The concept of eco-tourism. Ukraine's participation in the tourism business.

Topic 8. Globalization as a factor in international economic relations The concept of internationalization, integration and globalization. Essence, causes, signs of globalization. The contradiction between the expected and the available results of globalization. The essence of anti-globalism. Ukraine's participation in integration processes.

Topic 9. International Economic Integration: the nature, basic features, preconditions and effects The concept of integration and economic integration features. The essence and the main premise of international economic integration. Stages of development of integration processes and their characteristics. EU as the clearest example of the success of the integration process. Ukraine in the process of European integration.

Topic 10. Trends in international economic integration Current integration groupings of countries. Ukraine's economy and international integration processes. Ukraine to international groups. Interaction between Ukraine and NATO, Ukraine and the EU, Ukraine and Russia.

4. Structure of training discipline

Name of content modules and topics	Number of hours											
r		full-time education				extramural studies						
	to			also			total	also				
	tal	Lct	PC	Labs	IW	IW		Lct	PC	Labs	IW	IW
Module 1. Theoretical	and me	thodolo	ogical 1	foundation	ons of	interna	tional ed	conomi	ic relat	ions		
Content module 1. G	Content module 1. General characteristics of modern international economic relations											
1. Theoretical Foundations of	10	4	2			4						
International Economic Relations	10	4				4						
2.Modern features of the world	9	2	2			5						
economy	,	2				3						
3.The international division of labor	8	4	-			4						
4.International Trade	8	4	-			4						
5.International monetary and	8	2	2			4						
financial relations						•						
Total hours for module1	43	16	6			21						
Module 2. The r												
Content module	e 2. Maj	or tren	ds of n	nodern ii	nternat	ional e	conomi	c relati	ons			
6.International scientific and	8	4	_			4						
technological cooperation		-				7						
7.International tourism	10	2	2			6						
8.Globalization as a factor in	10	4	2			4						
international economic relations	10	'										
9.International economic integration:												
the nature, the main signs and	9	2	2			5						
symptoms of pre-conditions												
10.Trends in international economic	10	2	2			6						
integration	10					U						
Total hours for module 2	47	14	8			25						
Total hours for subject	90	30	14	_		46						

5.Topics and plans of lectures

No	Name of topics	Volume of
31≥	rame of topics	hours
1		
1	Topic 1 Theoretical Foundations of International Economic Relations	2
	Plan	
	1. The subject of international economic relations.	
2	2. Levels, types and forms of international economic relations.	2
2	Topic 2 Theoretical Foundations of International Economic Relations	2
	Plan	
	1. The concept of environment in international economic relations.	
	2. The nature and characteristics of international economic relations at the turn of the	
2	XXI century - History.	2
3	Theme 3. Modern features of the world economy	2
	Plan	
	1. Basics of international economic relations.	
	2. Characteristics of modern organizational and economic structure of the world	
	economy.	
4	3. The main contradiction in the world economy.	
4	Topic 4. International division of labor	2
	Plan	
	1. Nature and factors of international division of labor.	
	2. Main trends in the international division of labor.	
5	Topic 5. International division of labor	2
	Plan	
	1. Forms and directions of international specialization and cooperation in production.	
	2. Problems of Ukraine's participation in the international division of labor.	
6	Topic 6. International Trade	2
	Plan	
	1. The current state of international trade.	
	2. Features dynamics and changes in territorial and commodity structure of foreign	
7	trade.	2
7	Topic 7. International Trade	2
	Plan Noise translation records to the seconds.	
	1. Major trends in world trade at present	
0	2. Ukraine's participation in international trade.	2
8	Topic 8. International Monetary and Financial Relations	2
	Plan 1. The yearld monetary system	
	1. The world monetary system. 2. Release of international payments	
9	2. Balance of international payments. Topic 9. International scientific and technical cooperation	2
9	Plan	2
	1. A role of technological exchange is in the global economy.	
	·	
10	2. Mechanisms for technology transfer - types, differences and peculiarities Tonia 10. Intermedianal acientific and technical accounting	2
10	Topic 10. International scientific and technical cooperation Plan	2
	1. Price license	
	2. Documentation does not ensure technology transfer.	
11	3. Ukraine's participation in today's technology market. Topic 11. International Tourism	
11	Topic 11. International Tourism Plan	2
	1. The essence of international tourism, its types and structure.	
	2. Factors promoting international tourism. Its impact on the economy of the state.	
	2. 1 actors promoting international tourism. Its impact on the economy of the state.	

12	Topic 12. Globalization as a factor in international economic relations	
	Plan	2
	1. Concept of internationalization, integration and globalization.	
	2.Essence, causes, signs of globalization	
	3. The contradiction between the expected and available results of globalization	
13	Topic 13. Globalization as a factor in international economic relations	
	Plan	2
	1. The essence of the anti-globalization movement	
	2. Participating of Ukraine is in integration processes	
14	Topic 14. International economic integration: the nature, basic features,	
	background and displays	2
	Plan	
	1. The essence and the main premise of international economic integration	
	2. Stages of development of integration processes and their characteristics	
15	Topic 15. Trends of international economic integration	
	Plan	2
	1. Current integration groups of	
	2. Ukraine's economy and international integration processes	
	Total:	30

6. Topics of practical classes

№	Name of topics	Volume of
		hours
1	Topic 1. Theoretical Foundations of International Economic Relations	2
2	Topic 2. Modern features of the world economy	2
3	Topic 3. International monetary and financial relations	2
4	Topic 4. International tourism	2
5	Topic 5. Globalization as a factor in international economic relations	2
6	Topic 6. International economic integration: the nature, the main signs and symptoms of pre-conditions	2
7	Topic 7. Trends in international economic integration	2
	Total:	14

7. Independent work

№	Topic name	Volume of hours
1	Topic 1. Theoretical Foundations of International Economic Relations Plan Determining the prospects for the development of the system of international economic relations and modern features of the development of international economic relations, which contribute to the expansion of world economic relations of Ukraine	4
2	Topic 2. Modern features of the world economy Plan 1. Ukraine's participation in the international division of labor and international trade	5
3	Topic 3. International monetary and financial relations Plan 1. Feature of international financial relations	4

4	Topic 4. International Trade	
	Plan	4
	1. Feature of international trade	
5	Topic 5. International monetary and financial relations	
	Plan	
	1. Its composition, status and trends of further development.	4
	2. The concept of the balance of international payments, their features and	
	differences of each other.	
6	Topic 6. International scientific and technological cooperation	
	Plan	4
	1. Feature of international scientific	
7	Topic 7. International tourism	
	Plan	
	1. Analysis of the effectiveness of international community measures for	6
	international green tourism.	
	2. Characteristics of the role of Ukraine in international tourism.	
8	Topic 8. Globalization as a factor in international economic relations	
	Plan	
	1. Identification of the most dangerous for Ukraine areas of change in the	4
	environment of international economic relations.	-
	2. Identifying ways to use Ukraine's favorable opportunities for international	
	cooperation in the current environment of international economic relations.	
9	Topic 9. International economic integration: the nature, the main signs and	
	symptoms of pre-conditions	
	Plan	5
	1. Consideration of debatable aspects in defining the concept and essence of	
	international economic integration	
10	Topic 10. Trends in international economic integration	
	Plan	6
	1. Analysis of the impact of globalization on the socio-political, socio-economic	Ü
	and cultural life of the world community.	
	Total	46

Individual tasks

Module 1.

Fundamentals of International Economic Relations

- 1. Draft directions for improvement of international economic relations at the present stage.
- 2. Analyze the key indicators of economic and technological environment for the development of international economic relations of Ukraine.
- 3. Identify promising opportunities offered by the expansion of the activities of transnational corporations.
- 4. Formulate possible ways to minimize the gap between developed countries and developing countries.
- 5. Describe the possible measures to use Ukraine's comparative advantages in international trade.
- 6. Describe the parameters of the modern world monetary system.
- 7. Analyze the role of foreign loans in the economic development of Ukraine.
- 8. Describe the participation of Ukraine in international organizations.
- 9. Trace the dynamics of portfolio investment during the period of Ukraine's independence.

Module 2.

The role of international cooperation, globalization and integration

- 1. Investigate what the problem is the inclusion of Ukraine in international technology transfer.
- 2. Conduct a detailed analysis of Kyoto Protocol.
- 3. Describe the structure of the world system migration.
- 4. Explore the features of the system of regulations that govern international migration.
- 5. Analyze the relationship of globalization and integration processes.
- 6. Investigate the advantages and disadvantages of international economic integration.
- 7. Analyze the integration processes taking place in Latin America.
- 8. Describe the current state of international economic relations between Ukraine and the industrialized world.
- 9. Compare major trends "tigers" and "dragons".

8. Topics of abstracts:

- 1. Identify promising opportunities for the development of international economic relations.
- 2. Draft directions for improvement of international economic relations at the present stage.
- 3. Describe the possible measures to encourage the entry of Ukraine into the system of international economic relations?
- 4. Rate growth prospects as a newly industrialized countries as subjects of international economic relations.
- 5. Identify existing and potential impact of transnational (multinational) corporations in the state of international economic relations.
- 6. Track and analyze displays of integrating the economies of countries and regions.
- 7. Identify the advantages and disadvantages of scientific and technological progress in the context of international economic relations.
- 8. Determine economic causes aggravation of energy and raw materials and food problems.
- 9. Describe the economic role of the environment in the development of international economic relations?
- 10. Formulate basic directions of intensification of international economic relations of Ukraine.
- 11. Trace the evolution of the formation of the basic principles of international cooperation on historical and economic point of view.
- 12. Track and analyze the stages of development of the world economy.
- 13. Determine the economic barriers to global infrastructure.
- 14. Rate perspectives of each group element global infrastructure.
- 15. Identify existing and potential impact of the UN on the state of the world economy.
- 16. Draft directions modernize backward economies of developing countries.
- 17. Describe the possible measures to overcome the uneven development of countries.
- 18. Describe the economic role of the international division of labor in the development of human civilization.
- 19. Trace the evolution of Ukraine's participation in the MPP in the last decade.
- 20. Track and analyze changes in the structure of world trade in the early twenty-first century.
- 21. Identify the advantages and disadvantages of steady growth in international trade.
- 22. Determine economic causes uneven dynamics of foreign trade.
- 23. Rate growth prospects as a (your choice student) countries in international trade.
- 24. Describe the stages of the world monetary system.
- 25. Show essence and distinctive features of international monetary relations as a form of ERI.
- 26. Define the role of currencies in international relations.
- 27. Describe the parameters of the modern world monetary system.
- 28. Investigate the nature of the national currency and the conditions of its convertibility.
- 29. Conduct comparative analysis of the exchange rates.
- 30. Analyze factors that affect exchange rates.
- 31. Trace the major trends that loom in the global gold market

- 32. To characterize the international financial and credit centers.
- 33. Describe the mechanism for factoring.
- 34. To analyze the role of foreign loans in the economic development of Ukraine.
- 35. Explore all the options of economic policy if the threat of bankruptcy.
- 36. Analyze loan conditions of the International Monetary Fund.
- 37. Determine what types of loans are best suited for the domestic economy.
- 38. Find out what types of payments are best suited for the domestic economy.
- 39. To investigate the relationship between the volume of loans that Ukraine receives and the level of public debt.
- 40. Investigate sources of funds in the international financial and credit facilities.

9. Methods of study

- 1. Methods of learning source of knowledge:
- 1.1. Verbal: story, explanation, conversation (heuristic and reproductive), lecture, briefing, summarizing, making tables, graphs, supporting lecture notes and so on.
 - 1.2. Visual: demonstration, illustration, observation.
 - 1.3. Practical: practical work, exercise.
 - 2. Methods of studying the nature of logic knowledge.
 - 2.1. Analityc
 - 2.2. Synthesis
 - 2.3. Inductive method
 - 3. Methods of studying the nature and level of independent intellectual activity of students.
 - 3.1. Problem (problem-information)
 - 3.2. Part-search (heuristic)
 - 3.3. Exploratory
 - 3.4. Reproductive
 - 3.5. Explanatory, demonstrative
- 4. Active learning methods brainstorming, solving crosswords, competitions, debates, round tables, business games, training, use of problematic situations, tours, group study, self knowledge, simulation methods of learning, training and supervising of tests, the use of basic lectures)
- 5. Interactive learning technologies use of multimedia technologies, spreadsheets, case-study, kahoot, learning dialogue, cooperation Students (cooperation).

10. Methods of evaluation

- 1 Rating control a 100-point scale assessment ECTS
- 2. Implementation of the interim control during the semester (intermediate certification)
- 3. Polikryterial assessment of the current work of students:
- The level of knowledge demonstrated in practical laboratory work;
- Activity when discussing issues submitted to school;
- Express control during practical classes;
- Self study topics in general or specific issues;
- Implementation of analytical and computational tasks;
- Writing papers, essays, reports;
- The results of testing;
- Writing assignments during the tests;
- Industrial situations, case studies and more.
- 4. Direct incorporation in the final assessment of student performance of certain individual tasks:
- Educational and practical study of the presentation of results and more.

11. Distribution points that get students

Routine test	ing and independ	lent work				
Module 1 - 20 points	Module 2 - 20 points	T 1 1 1	Total for modules and	Certification	Final test -	Amount
Content module 1	Content module 2	Individual work	Individual task		exam	
			55	15	30	100
20	20	15	(40+15)			

Evaluation (points, ECTS, national)

Evaluation (points, EC15, national)								
Total points	ECTS	National rating						
Total points		Exams, term paper, practice	credit					
90 – 100	A	Excellent						
82-89	В	Good	passing					
75-81	C	Good						
69-74	D	Satisfactory						
60-68	E	Satisfactory						
35-59	FX	Unsatisfactory	Not passing, but can have second attemp					
1-34	F	Poor	Not passind, need add training					

12. Methodological literature

- 1. Mykhailov A.M. International economic relations. Guidelines for independent study courses prepare students speciality 073 "Management" ", educational degree of "Bachelor" Sumy: 2019. 36 p.
- 2. Mykhailov A.M. International economic relations. Abstract of lectures on discipline "International Economic Relations" for students of 2nd year full-time speciality 073 "Management", educational degree of "Bachelor" Sumy: SNAU. 2019. 62 p.
- 3. Mykhailov AM "International Economic Relations". Workbook for practical classes and independent study courses for students speciality 073 "Management", educational degree of "Bachelor" Sumy: 2019, 52 p.
- 4. Educational and methodical materials based on the Moodle platform. URL: https://cdn.snau.edu.ua/moodle/course/view.php?id=3832

13. Literature

Basic

- 1. Dai Tamada, Philippe Achilleas. Theory and Practice of Export Control: Balancing International Security and International Economic Relations (SpringerBriefs in Economics). Publisher: Springer, 2017. 178 p.
- 2. Dominick Salvatore. International Economics. Publisher: Wiley, 2019. 720 p.
- 3. International trade. URL: http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/International_trade#Models.
- 4. James Gerber. International Economics (7th Edition) (Pearson Series in Economics). Publisher: Pearson, 2017. 512 p.
- 5. Mark V. Kauppi, Paul R. Viotti. International Relations Theory. Publisher: Rowman & Littlefield Publishers, 2019. 448 p.
- 6. Ralph H. Folsom, Michael Wallace Gordon, Michael P. Van Alstine. International Trade and Economic Relations in a Nutshell (Nutshells). Publisher: West Academic Publishing; 2016. 437 p.

7. Types of foreign economic activity URL: http://www.ukrexport.gov.ua/eng/legislation/3297.html.

Additional

- 1. Bases of adjusting of foreign economic activity URL: http://www.ukrexport.gov.ua/eng/legislation/3303.html.
- 2. Bird R. M. Introduction to Tax Policy Design and Development. RichardM. Bird and Eric M. Zolt. URL:https://www.google.com.ua/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=6&ved=0ahUKEwil7
 - rowe3JAhVJvXIKHaZGCEEQFghIMAU&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww1.worldbank.org%2Fpubli csector%2FLearningProgram%2FPracticalIssues%2Fpapers%2Fintroduction%2520to%2520tax%2520policy%2FWBI%2520Module%25201(Bird%26Zolt)April10.doc&usg=AFQjCNHyU9gf0zMTYVmsPbupIqN99XwNrg&sig2=9ivCiSgMTxCNIRji1k_wTg&bvm=bv.110151844,d.bGQ&cad=rja.
- 3. Chebeleu I. C. Structure and content of the sale-buy International contract. URL: http://protmed.uoradea.ro/facultate/anale/ecotox_zooteh_ind_alim/2009/imapa/20% 20Chebeleu% 20Ioana.pdf.
- 4. Establishing alliances between Exporters and local suppliers (of materials, components and value-added services) the role of the public sector. URL: file:///C:/Users/X-User/Downloads/Ukraine%20_Alliances.pdf.
- 5. Justification for Intermediaries. URL:http://www.udel.edu/alex/chapt15.html.
- 6. International Terms of Payment.URL: http://www.foreign-trade.com/reference/payment.cfm.
- 7. International Trade and Intellectual Property: from Basic Steps to Complex Matters. URL: http://ukrainianlawfirms.com/practice/100.
- 8. International Trade and Capital Movements. URL: http://www.theworldeconomy.org/advances/advances2.html.
- 9. Kotysh O. Scientific Abstract of the Article "A Theoretical Insight into the Concept of Foreign Trade Operation". URL: http://www.ed.ksue.edu.ua/ER/knt/re142_70/re142kot.pdf.
- 10. Offshore company types. URL: http://www.unitrustcapital.com/tools.html.
- 11. UA Trade Intermediary. URL: http://www.ua-trade.com/order.html.
- 12. Sargeant N. What risks do organizations face when engaging in international finance activities? URL: http://www.investopedia.com/ask/answers/06/internationalfinancerisks.asp.
- 13. Shangquan G. Economic Globalization: Trends, Risks and Risk Prevention. URL: http://www.un.org/en/development/desa/policy/cdp/cdp_background_papers/bp2000_1.pdf.
- 14. The Development of foreign trade of Ukraine. URL: http://xreferat.com/113/9639-4-the-development-of-foreign-trade-of-ukraine.html.
- $15. \label{eq:conomic} The new economic analyses of multinationals. URL: https://books.google.com.ua/books?id=wM_SAgAAQBAJ&pg=PA1&lpg=PA1&dq=The+economic+analysis+in+the+field+of+International+Business&source=bl&ots=h0PUDdH_mu&sig=6djwh4lPTGpGepTmA0788i278gk&hl=ru&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwiw$
 - b7nxO_JAhXI_XIKHalQDAkQ6AEIMjAD#v=onepage&q=The%20economic%20analysis%20in%20the%20field%20of%20International%20Business&f=false.

16.

14. Informational resources

- 1. Currency transactions control. URL: http://www2.deloitte.com/ua/en/pages/press-room/tax-and-legal-alerts/tax-currency-control.html.
 - 3. State Commission on Securities and Stock Market. URL: http://www.ssmsc.gov.ua.
 - 4. State Committee of Statistics. URL: http://www.ukrstat.gov.ua.
 - 5. The Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine. URL: http://www.kmu.gov.ua.
 - 6. The Ministry of Economy. URL: http://www.me.gov.ua.
 - 7. The Ministry of Finance. URL: http://www.minfin.gov.ua.
 - 8. The National Bank of Ukraine. URL: http://www.bank.gov.ua.
 - 9. World Bank. URL: http://www.worldbank.org.ru.